


AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION INFORMATION 

The Roseburg City Council welcomes and encourages participation by citizens at all our meetings, with the exception of 
Executive Sessions, which, by state law, are closed to the public.  To allow Council to deal with business on the agenda 
in a timely fashion, we ask that anyone wishing to address the Council follow these simple guidelines: 
 

Comments may be provided in one of three ways: 

 In person during the meeting in the Council Chambers, Roseburg City Hall, 900 SE Douglas Ave. 

 Email by sending an email by 4:00 p.m. the day of the meeting to info@cityofroseburg.org 

 Virtually during the meeting. Contact the City Recorder by phone (541) 492-6866 or email 

(info@cityofroseburg.org) by 4:00 p.m. the day of the meeting to get a link to the meeting.   

Provide your name, address, phone number and which item on the agenda you wish to speak.   

When participating virtually, log or call in prior to the start of the meeting using the link or phone number 

provided. 

 When accessing the meeting through the ZOOM link, click “Join Webinar” to join the meeting as an 
attendee. 

 When accessing the meeting through the phone, call the number provided. 

 All attendees will be held in a “waiting room” until called on to speak. 
 
Persons addressing the Council must state their name and address for the record, including whether or not 
they are a resident of the City of Roseburg.  All remarks shall be directed to the entire City Council.  The 
Council reserves the right to delay any action requested until they are fully informed on the matter. 
 
TIME LIMITATIONS 
With the exception of public hearings, each speaker will be allotted a total of 6 minutes.  At the 4-minute mark, a 
warning bell will sound at which point the Mayor will remind the speaker there are only 2 minutes left.  All testimony 
given shall be new and not have been previously presented to Council. 
A total of 30 minutes shall be allocated for the “Audience Participation” portion of the meeting.   
 
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 

 Anyone wishing to speak regarding an item on the agenda may do so when Council addresses that item.   

 Anyone wishing to speak regarding an item on the Consent Agenda, or on a matter not on the evening’s 
agenda, may do so under “Audience Participation.”   

 
PROVIDING COMMENTS 
For each item in which speakers have requested to speak, the order will be as follows: 

1. Speakers who attend in person will be called up to speak by the Mayor in the order in which they signed up. 
2. Speakers on Zoom (video or phone only) will be called on to speak by the Mayor in the order in which they 

signed up. Each speaker will be brought in from the “waiting room”’ into the meeting to provide comments, 
then moved back to the “waiting room” after comments are provided.   

3. Emailed comments to be read by the Mayor 
 
If a matter presented to Council is of a complex nature, the Mayor or a majority of Council may: 

1. Postpone the public comments to “Items from Mayor, Councilors or City Manager” after completion of the 
Council’s business agenda, or 

2. Schedule the matter for continued discussion at a future Council meeting. 
 
The Mayor and City Council reserve the right to respond to audience comments after the audience participation 
portion of the meeting has been closed. 

 
The City Council meetings are on Facebook Live and available to view on the City website the next day at:  

https://www.cityofroseburg.org/your-government/mayor-council/council-videos   
 

The full agenda packet is available on the City’s website at:  https://cityofroseburg.org/your-
governement/mayor-council/council-agendas. 

mailto:info@cityofroseburg.org
mailto:info@cityofroseburg.org
https://www.cityofroseburg.org/your-government/mayor-council/council-videos
https://cityofroseburg.org/your-governement/mayor-council/council-agendas
https://cityofroseburg.org/your-governement/mayor-council/council-agendas


SPECIAL MEETING AND MAYORS REPORTS C 
05/09/2022 

 
ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
 

 

WARD 1 CITY COUNCIL INTERVIEWS/APPOINTMENT 
 

Meeting Date:  May 9, 2022 Agenda Section: Mayor Reports 
Department:  Administration      Staff Contact:  Amy Sowa, ACM/City Recorder 
www.cityofroseburg.org Contact Telephone Number:  541-492-6866 
 

 
ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY   
City Councilor Alison Eggers resigned her position as representative of Ward 1.  
Therefore, there was a vacancy to be filled on the City Council for Ward 1, Position 1. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
A. Council Action History.   
The City Council accepted Alison Egger’s resignation on April 11, 2022.  Immediately 
thereafter, Staff advertised the City Council vacancy through the local news media, social 
media and the City’s website, with a deadline of April 29, 2022 established for application 
submission. 
 
Two applications were received for this position. One applicant has withdrawn their 
application. The remaining applicant has been invited to attend the meeting for their 
interview, which has been scheduled as follows: 
 
 6:45 p.m.  Kylee Rummel 
 
B. Analysis.  
Roseburg Municipal Code Chapter 2.10 requires the City Council to interview City Council 
candidates at a public meeting. 
 
To the extent possible, the Council is to act to fill the vacancy at the same meeting in 
which it interviews candidates.  Following the interview, the Council may make the 
appointment or solicit additional candidates for consideration at a later meeting before 
making an appointment. 
 
Anytime during the process, a three-fourths vote of the entire membership of the current 
Council may terminate the procedure and make an appointment. 
 
C. Financial/Resource Considerations.  N/A 
 
D. Timing Considerations.   

http://www.cityofroseburg.org/


SPECIAL MEETING AND MAYORS REPORTS C 
05/09/2022 

To ensure appropriate representation for the residents of Ward 1, it is recommended the 
appointment be made as soon as practical. 
 
COUNCIL OPTIONS 

1. Interview the applicant and make an appointment; or 
2. Interview the applicant and choose to solicit additional candidates for consideration 

at a later meeting; or 
3. With a minimum of six affirmative votes, vote to discontinue the procedure as 

outlined in the above analysis and make an appointment. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the City Council proceed with interviewing the applicant for the City 
Council vacancy. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION   
After the interview is complete, if Council is ready to proceed with an appointment, the 
appropriate motion would be “I MOVE TO APPOINT ____________ TO FILL THE 
WARD 1, POSITION 1 VACANCY, THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2022. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Attachment #1 – Interview Questions 
Attachment #2 – Kylee Rummel Application 



SPECIAL MEETING INTERVIEW QUESTIONS 
ATTACHMENT #1  

QUESTIONS FOR PROSPECTIVE CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS 

 

1. Since everyone may not know you, briefly tell us your name, where you work(ed) 

and your involvement in the community. 

 

 

 

 

2. What skills and experience do you have that you feel makes you a good fit for 

City Council? 

 

 

3. Why did you apply for appointment to the City Council? 

 

 

4. What role do you see City government playing in the community? 

 

 

5. What role, if any, do you believe City Councilors should play in the day-to-day 

operations of City government? 

 

 

6. How do you deal with conflicts? Talk about a time you had a conflict with a co-

worker or fellow citizen and how you dealt with that. 

 

 

7. List three priorities you feel the Council should concentrate on during 2021-2022. 



SPECIAL MEETING/MAYOR REPORTS C
ATTACHMENT #2







SPECIAL  MEETING/MAYOR REPORTS C
ATTACHMENT #3







MAYOR REPORTS A



MAYOR REPORTS B



MAYOR REPORTS D 
05/09/2022 

 
ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
 

 

ROSEBURG CITY CHARTER REVIEW COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS 
 

Meeting Date:  May 9, 2022 Agenda Section: Commission Reports 
Department:  Administration      Staff Contact:  Amy Sowa, ACM/City Recorder 
www.cityofroseburg.org Contact Telephone Number:  541-492-6866 
 

 
ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY   
A new Roseburg City Charter Committee was recently formed to include three city 
resident members. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
A. Council Action History.   
June 25, 2012:  Staff provided a report to Council regarding revisions to the Charter and 
proposing a timeline to place a measure on the ballot in May of 2013.  No further action 
was taken, and no changes were made to the Charter. 
 
February 14, 2022:  Staff provided a report to Council regarding establishing a committee 
to consider revisions to the Charter.   
 
B. Analysis.  
On February 14, 2022, Council directed staff to form a City Charter Committee made up 
of the City Recorder, City Attorney, councilors and city residents.  Councilors Sheri 
Moothart, Andrea Zielinski and Bob Cotterell were approved by the Mayor to serve on this 
committee. 
 
Recruitment for three citizen positions was posted on the City’s website, social media and 
sent to the local news media starting April 12, 2022.  Two applications were received by 
the deadline of 5:00 p.m. April 29, 2022, and are attached to this memo.  A third 
application was received shortly after the deadline.  This committee will meet monthly for 
a period of approximately six months. 
 
The Roseburg City Charter Review Committee will work with staff and the City Attorney 
to review the current Charter for sections and/or language that may be outdated, and 
propose amendments for an updated Charter to the Council.  This committee will report 
to the Roseburg City Council.  Any amendments to the Charter require a vote of the 
people. 
  

http://www.cityofroseburg.org/


MAYOR REPORTS D 
05/09/2022 

 
C. Financial/Resource Considerations.   
There is no financial impact in appointing three citizen members to this committee.  If a 
measure to amend the Charter is submitted for the May 16, 2023, Special Election, the 
City’s costs could be between $1500 and $2000.  Funds are available for this expense. 
 
D. Timing Considerations.   
Staff estimates review of the Charter by the committee and review of proposed 
amendments by the Council will take approximately seven months to complete.  To meet 
the March 16, 2023 deadline to submit a measure for the May 16, 2023 election, Council 
would need to take action to place a measure on the ballot during a regular Council 
meeting no later than February 20, 2023.   
 
COUNCIL OPTIONS 

1. Appoint one, two or three citizen members to the City Charter Review Committee; 
or 

2. Choose to solicit additional candidates for consideration at a later meeting. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff has no recommendation regarding appointment.  Councilors Zielinski, Moothart and 
Cotterell reviewed the applications and will present their recommendation to the Council 
for consideration. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION   
If Council is ready to proceed with appointments, the appropriate motion would be: 
 
“I MOVE TO APPOINT ____________ TO THE ROSEBURG CITY CHARTER REVIEW 
COMMITTEE.” 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Attachment #1 – Jeffrey Weller Application 
Attachment #2 – Betsy Cunningham Application 
Attachment #3 – Ashley Hicks Application 



MAYORS REPORT D
ATTACHMENT #1





CITY OF ROSEBURG  
COMMITTEE APPLICATION 

Application for Appointment to:  

ROSEBURG CITY CHARTER REVIEW COMMITTEE 

The Roseburg City Charter Review Committee will work with staff and the City Attorney to review 
the current Charter for sections and/or language that may be outdated, and propose amendments 
for an updated Charter to the Council.  This committee will report to the Roseburg City Council.  
Any amendments to the Charter require a vote of the people. 

Name:  ___________________________    __________________________________ 
Last First 

Home Address:  _____________________________________________ __________ 
Street   Zip Code 

Phone Number: _______________________   Cell Phone: ______________________ 

Email Address: ________________________________ 
 
Occupation _____________________________/_____________________________

Place of Employment 

Business Address _____________________________________ ________________ 
Phone 

1. Do you reside within the Roseburg city limits?  Yes □ No □
2. Do you own property or a business within the City? Yes □   No □ 

3. How did you learn about this vacancy?

Newspaper □   Social Media □   City Website □   Word of Mouth □
Other □ Please Specify: ______________________________________________

4. What experience/training do you have that qualifies you for this particular appointment
and what specific contributions do you hope to make?

Cunningham Betsy

805 SE Stephens Apt 208, Roseburg 97470

(541) 580-2746

cea2day@gmail.com

Retired n/a

n/a

✔

✔

✔

I completed college level course work about municipal government, including charters 
and other operational aspects of Oregon cities.  I am familiar with relevant Oregon law, 
as well as practices for good governance. I see the city Charter as the starting point to 
ensure that for our all our citizens.  I hope to contribute to a full review of our Charter 
that will evaluate it against a variety of our current needs. I also have some skills 
regarding outreach, which can help expand citizen involvment in the process.  

MAYOR REPORTS D
ATTACHMENT #2



5. Please give a brief description of your involvement in community groups and activities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. Please list community topics of particular concern to you that relate to this 

appointment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7. Please list your reasons for wishing to be appointed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8. Are you able to attend meetings virtually? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Meetings will generally be held on the 4th Wednesday of each month at 4:00 p.m.  Are 
you available to meet at that time?  Yes ___    No ___ 
 
 
______________________________________________   ____________________ 
Applicant Signature       Date 
 
 
Return completed application to the City Administration Office, 900 SE Douglas, 
Roseburg, OR 97470 or e-mail to info@cityofroseburg.org.   
 
You will be advised when the City Council will make appointments.   
 

Information on this form is public information. 
Thank you for your expression of interest in serving the community. 

Founder/chair of Housing First Umpqua (homeless advocacy).  Served on City of 
Roseburg Homeless Commission's Basic Needs Committee.  Serve on HTAG's Basic 
Needs & Housing Committees.  Conduct online community discussion forums about 
various local issues.  Prior: SERVICE/Neighborhood Watch (working to revitalize it 
now). Senior Center Farmers Market.  Part of successful effort to revitalize Glide 
Community Club. 

Number one is having a Charter that is consistent with our deeds and needs.  I would 
like to see a change to the process used to elect city councilors and mayor to make sure 
that people do not win by just a plurality and that those elected to these positions more 
clearly reflect at least a simple majority of voters. Also we might need to look at possible 
local control of campaign finance for city elections.

Before the city decided to convene this Charter Review Committee, I had been 
discussing with others in the community about the need for change to our city Charter 
for a while.  Even the possible need for a citizens committee to look at making it 
happen.  It seems that we might achieve a better outcome by having this take place 
within the City's Charter Committee process.  Maybe we can find common ground and 
save time and money by having just one full proposal being put before the voters. 

Yes.

✔

04/25/2022























CONSENT AGENDA B 
05/09/2022 

 
ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
 

 

OREGON DEPARTMENT OF AVIATION PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 
AGREEMENT AUTHORIZATION 

 

Meeting Date:  May 9, 2022 Agenda Section: Consent 
Department: Administration      Staff Contact:  Nikki Messenger 
www.cityofroseburg.org Contact Telephone Number:  541-492-6866 
 

 
ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY   
The Oregon Department of Aviation (ODA) administers a statewide Pavement 
Management Program (PMP) for public use airports.  The Roseburg Regional Airport is 
scheduled to receive major crack-sealing work this cycle.  Given tight scheduling issues, 
the City Manager executed an agreement with ODA to perform this work.  The issue for 
the Council is whether to authorize the City Manager to execute this agreement 
retroactively. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
A. Council Action History.   
None. 
 
B. Analysis.  
As explained under “Items” at the last Council meeting, staff was contacted by ODA staff 
in late April regarding PMP work that was scheduled for the Roseburg Airport.  Roseburg 
is one of several airports receiving PMP work this summer. The majority of the work 
includes crack-sealing and re-striping the runway and taxiway connectors.  The contractor 
indicated they would like to perform the work in early May.  In order to accomplish this, 
the City Manager needed to execute an agreement with ODA defining and agreeing to 
the work.  While the value of the agreement is over the City Manager’s authority 
($50,000), there is no cost to the City.   
 
C. Financial/Resource Considerations.   
Total project cost is estimated at $137,391.48.  Typically, the City would have a ten 
percent match.  Under this agreement, the state is covering the local match.   
 
D. Timing Considerations.   
The work was originally scheduled to occur the first week of May, but has been delayed 
due to weather.  Given that the City Manager has already executed the contract, it would 
be appropriate to take action as soon as practicable.   
 

http://www.cityofroseburg.org/


CONSENT AGENDA B 
05/09/2022 

COUNCIL OPTIONS 
Council has the following options: 

1. Authorize the City Manager to execute an agreement with the Oregon Department
of Aviation for the Pavement Management Program work at the Roseburg
Regional Airport; or

2. Request additional information.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Council authorize execution of the agreement retroactively. 

SUGGESTED MOTION   
“I move to authorize an agreement with the Oregon Department of Aviation for 
the 2021 Statewide Airport Pavement Maintenance Program.” 

ATTACHMENTS: 
None. 



DEPARTMENT ITEMS A 
05/09/2022 

 
ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
 

 

ANNUAL FEE ADJUSTMENT DISCUSSION 
 

Meeting Date:  May 9, 2022 Agenda Section: Department Items 
Department:  Administration      Staff Contact:  Amy L. Sowa, ACM/City Recorder 
www.cityofroseburg.org Contact Telephone Number:  541-492-6866 
 

 
ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY   
Pursuant to previously adopted City Council resolutions, service fees are to be adjusted 
annually to account for increased costs to provide those services.  Council delayed the 
increase in 2020 due to the economic impacts related to the Coronavirus pandemic, and 
made annual increases to fees in 2021, with the exception of monthly storm drainage and 
water fees for residential and commercial properties.  Council will consider increases in 
fees for 2022. 
 
BACKGROUND 
A. Council Action History.   

 May 11, 2020:  Council adopted Resolution No. 2020-07, delaying fee increases 
to May 2021.  

 May 24, 2021:  Council adopted Resolution No. 2021-09, increasing fees except 
monthly storm drainage and water fees for residential and commercial properties. 

 
B. Analysis.  
The City normally adjusts service fees annually based on either the CPI-U West index 
(currently 4.5%) or the March Construction Cost Index (CCI) (currently 8.87%, but capped 
at 5% for city fee adjustments).  These adjustments ensure the City is able to continue to 
provide needed services to our citizens, and maintain, repair and construct important 
infrastructure throughout the City, while remaining financially stable.  
 
Below is information on some of the fees Council may want to consider adjusting.  
 

1. Airport Facilities:  Annual adjustments to certain airport fees are tied to the CPI-U 
West index and rounded to the nearest dollar, with a maximum increase of 3%.  
The CPI-U West increase is 4.5%; therefore, the proposed increase would be 3%.  
The airport is operated as an enterprise fund, and it is important that it continues 
to generate the necessary revenue to cover expenses and future grant matches in 
the absence of the urban renewal funding that was previously available for grant 
match.  

 

http://www.cityofroseburg.org/


DEPARTMENT ITEMS A 
05/09/2022 

2. Business Permits-Licenses – Telecommunications Providers:  Annual adjustments 
to the non-carrier w/facilities in right-of-way but not City customers fees are tied to 
the CPI-U West index and charged at a per linear foot rate. 
 

3. Community Development - Planning:  Annual adjustments to the planning fees are 
tied to the CPI-U West index.  An increase of 4.5% this year would continue to 
keep our fees considerably lower than fees for comparable services charged by 
the County.  Over the past year, building in our community has remained strong 
and has not been adversely affected by the pandemic. 

 
4. Fire:  Annual adjustments to fees in the Fire Department are tied to the CPI-U West 

index.  These fees include False Alarm Response Fee, False Alarm Appeal Fee, 
Inspections, Permits, Plan Review, and Hazardous Materials Response. 
 
The Fire Department responds to numerous false alarms during the year, taking 
personnel out of service to investigate the calls.  Charging fees for false alarms 
also serves as an incentive for business owners to maintain their systems in 
working order and reduce the number of false alarms. 
 
The Fire Marshal reviews plans for new construction projects in the City and 
conducts inspections of these projects to ensure safety standards are 
met.  Nominal fees are charged to developers for these services.  The Fire Marshal 
also conducts inspections of mobile food vendors, fireworks sales outlets, and 
backyard burning locations, charging a fee for the issuance of permits for these 
activities. 
 
The Roseburg Fire Department houses one of thirteen regional Hazardous 
Materials Teams, in conjunction with the Oregon State Fire Marshal’s Office.  In 
the event of a hazardous materials incident, the team mobilizes and takes steps to 
mitigate the impact of the incident on the citizens and environment.  In the event 
of a non-state team response, fees are sometimes assessed against the party or 
parties responsible for the incident. 
 

5. System Development Charges (SDCs) for Parks, Transportation, Storm Drainage 
and Water:  Annual adjustments to SDCs are tied to the March Construction Cost 
Index (CCI) up to a maximum of 5% (current rate 8.87%).    
 

The City of Roseburg, like all cities, is largely built by developers. As the City 
grows, there is increasing demand on City infrastructure such as the street system, 
the water system, the storm drainage system, etc. SDCs are fees that are 
assessed when a property is developed.  Funds collected can only be used as 
outlined in the adopted SDC methodology for each charge. 
 
SDCs in the City of Roseburg are typically adjusted annually. This indexing of 
SDCs ensures that the charges assessed keep up with changes in the cost of 



DEPARTMENT ITEMS A 
05/09/2022 

construction of new infrastructure.  Roseburg is continuing to see significant 
growth, and it is appropriate to adjust SDCs at this time.  

 
6. Storm Drainage Service Fees:  Beginning July 1, 2019, annual adjustments to 

monthly storm drainage service fees were to be tied to the CPI-U West index.  
These fees have not been increased for the past two years.   

 
7. Water Fees:  Monthly water service rates were formerly increased based on a 

schedule set by Resolution No. 2015-16.  The rates expired December 31, 2020, 
and were not increased in 2021.  Moving forward, it would be appropriate to tie 
annual water fee adjustments to the CPI-U West index effective July 1 each year 
to match other similar fees. 

 
Other proposed amendments to the fee schedule not tied to specific indexes include the 
following: 

1. Public Information Requests – Police/Court Records:  Increase the fee for “Partial 
blur” of video camera footage to better reflect staff costs.   
 

2. Administration:  Change the exemption for the right-of-way permit fee from the 
Downtown Roseburg Association to sponsored by the city or a city-funded 
downtown association.   
 

3. Business Permits-Licenses – Taxicab:  Propose adding “Limousine,” charging 
the same fee as Taxis.  We recently received a request from a limousine 
company and realized we had not specified limousines on our application forms, 
although they are listed under the Vehicle for Hire ordinance.  In researching 
other cities, it is common to charge the same for Taxis and Limousines. 
 

4. Finance:  Propose the following changes: 

 Adding a “Credit Card Processing Fee” for payments over $1,000 made using 
a credit card.  The City is charged a fee from the credit card companies when 
processing payments by credit card.  This fee would pass those costs on to 
the customer.  This fee would not apply to utility payments. 

 Removing “Free Parking Zone Reporting Requirement Penalty” as this was 
removed when changes were made to the code regarding parking.  

 Removing “Unlawful Parking in a Space Reserved for Disabled Persons 
Penalty” as this is set in the Judge’s Order setting all traffic fines. 

 Removing the $25.00 deposit that had been in place when parking hoods 
were issued to recoup the cost of the hood if lost.  A permit is now issued in 
place of a hood so no deposit is required. 

 Move Service and Delivery Permits from the Police section to Finance as 
these fit with the other parking service fees. 

 

5. Library:  Add “12” x 12” scrapbook paper” under the Maker Space Materials. 
 



DEPARTMENT ITEMS A 
05/09/2022 

6. Parks:  Add language stating that recognized veteran organizations shall be 
exempt from paying park usage fees under certain circumstances, which is our 
current practice.  This language was to be added to the fee schedule pursuant to 
Resolution No. 2015-11.   

 
7. Police:  Add language under Firearms Discharge Permit that military and funerals 

are exempt from the fee. 
 

8. Water:  Increase the after-hours call out fee from $40 to $100 to better reflect actual 
costs.  In the near future, due to legislative changes, staff will be looking at 
alternative ways to handle the Central Dispensing Station water sales.  
 

C. Financial/Resource Considerations.   
Staff is preparing to present a proposed budget, which continues to see operational 
expenditures exceed annual revenues.  Annual increases to fees are an important policy 
action to address increasing operational expenses in an effort to maintain fiscal stability. 
 
D. Timing Considerations.   
These fees are generally scheduled to be updated in May of each year, with an effective 
date of July 1.   
 
COUNCIL OPTIONS 
Council has the following options: 

 Direct staff to bring back resolutions with fee adjustments as outlined in this memo; 
or 

 Direct staff to bring back resolutions with other fee adjustments; or 

 Direct staff to bring back a resolution postponing any fee adjustments to a later 
date. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends Council direct staff to bring back resolutions with fee adjustments as 
outlined in this memo. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION   
No motion required, just direction to staff regarding any fee adjustments. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
None 



DEPARTMENT ITEMS B 
05/09/2022 

 
ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
 

 

PROVIDING INTERIM CASH FLOW FINANCING FOR OFF STREET PARKING FUND 
 

Meeting Date:  May 9, 2022 Agenda Section: Department Items 
Department: Finance      Staff Contact:  Ron Harker, Finance Director 
www.cityofroseburg.org Contact Telephone Number:  541-492-6710 
 

 
ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY   
The City recently entered into a contract for downtown parking enforcement services.  
The parking enforcement program has been ramping up since January with full 
enforcement being implemented in April.  Due to the implementation phase of the 
program, the City has not experienced a month of full revenue generation and has had to 
use reserves in the Off Street Parking Fund to cover the costs of the enforcement 
program.  It is projected that existing reserves will be insufficient to cover costs until full 
revenue generation is established thereby requiring a revenue source to provide the 
needed cash-flow to cover expenses of the program. 
 
Two funding options have been identified that could provide the funds to meet the cash 
flow needs of the Off Street Parking Fund.  The first is an interfund loan from the ARPA 
Fund, and the second is a direct expenditure of ARPA funds to cover cash flow needs.   
 
BACKGROUND 
 
A. Council Action History.   
April 27, 2020: Authorized cancellation of the Parking Enforcement Services Contract with 
DRA/Park Smart by mutual Consent effective March 31, 2020. 
 
March 22, 2021: Received a Downtown Parking Assessment and Plan presentation from 
Rick Williams Consulting.  Accepted the Downtown Parking Assessment and Plan. 
 
December 13, 2021: awarded the contract for parking enforcement services to ACE 
Parking. 
 
B. Analysis.    
The City’s current cash balance in the Off-Street Parking Fund is $11,552.83.  The net 
change in fund balance for April was $-12,352.99.  May will be the first time that the City 
will receive revenues for citations that were issued in April.  What is still unknown at this 
time is what monthly revenues will be from permits, citations, and meters.  Consequently, 
the City should be able to cover the contract cost this month, but it will probably be very 
tight.  Staff currently has no basis to estimate citation revenue and no basis to know what 

http://www.cityofroseburg.org/


DEPARTMENT ITEMS B 
05/09/2022 

the collection and aging rate might be on these accounts.  Additionally, staff is not sure 
how many permits have been issued for multiple months which would present monthly 
fluctuations in revenue collections from parking permits.  The City will likely not be able 
to meet current contract requirements for some months to come until the program gets 
fully established.   
 
In the interim, the City has a cash flow problem in the Off Street Parking Fund that needs 
to be addressed.  As the Off Street Parking program is not currently generating sufficient 
funds to meet the cash requirements of the funds, funding from some other source needs 
to be established in the short-term.  Staff has identified two options to provide the needed 
cash flow in the Off Street Parking Fund; first, we could establish an Interfund Loan from 
the ARPA Fund, or second, we could utilize ARPA funding to provide the needed cash 
flow directly.  The pros/cons of both options are presented below: 

 An Interfund Loan from the ARPA Fund 
o Pros: 

 Funds can be transferred from the ARPA Fund to the Off Street 
Parking Fund to cover the cash flow requirements until the parking 
enforcement contract is fully implemented and established. 

o Cons: 
 It would take Council Action to set up the interfund loan and would 

need to be established no later than June 13th. 
 

 As the interfund loan would be an operational loan it would need to 
be paid back in the current fiscal year (which staff doesn’t foresee 
being possible) or it must be budgeted for repayment in the next 
fiscal year.  Given the timing of the budget hearings and the end of 
the current fiscal year, additional Council action on June 13th would 
be required to make adjustments to the approved budget prior to its 
adoption to budget for the loan repayment in next year’s budget. 

 
 The Off Street Parking fund would be required to repay the loan by 

June 30, 2023.  Not knowing how much will be required until the 
program begins turning a profit and not knowing how much a profit 
can be generated during the FY 22-23, there is a risk that any profit 
earned next year will not be sufficient to repay the debt in the fiscal 
year as required. 

 

 Use of ARPA funds: 
o Pros: 

 Use of ARPA funds in providing the needed cash flow to support the 
Off Street Parking Fund can be used with no enhanced reporting 
requirements. 

 
 ARPA funds do not need to be repaid and so the fiscal stability of the 

Off Street Parking Fund is certain. 
 



DEPARTMENT ITEMS B 
05/09/2022 

 Staff would only need Council consensus to utilize ARPA funds for 
the Off Street Parking Fund; no other Council action would be 
required as we already have ample appropriation authority 
established for both this year and next. 

 
o Cons: 

 Would result in a reduction of ARPA funds that could be used for 
other high priority items. 

 
Regardless of which solution is ultimately chosen to address the cash flow needs of the 
Off Street Parking Fund, staff recommends that the interim financing act as a line-of-credit 
up to $50,000.  The Funds would be drawn only as needed to ensure that the Off Street 
Parking Fund remains in a positive cash balance position.   
 
C. Financial/Resource Considerations.   
The use of ARPA funds to provide needed cash flow financing will not significantly impact 
the ARPA fund as a line of Credit of $50,000 only represents 1.6% of expenditures.  
Financial impacts on the Off Street Parking Fund differ based upon which solution is 
chosen.  An interfund loan requires repayment which would suppress future fund balance 
growth. Direct use of ARPA funds would serve to build the fund balance quicker providing 
enhanced fund stabilization and sustainability.  
 
D. Timing Considerations.   
Due to the rapid depletion of fund reserves and the need to maintain a positive cash 
balance in the fund, it is essential to provide staff direction on how to address the need. 
 
COUNCIL OPTIONS 

1) Provide staff direction to utilize ARPA funds directly to cover the cash flow 
needs of the Off Street Parking Fund up to $50,000; or 

2) Direct staff to present Council with a Resolution to establish an interfund loan 
from the ARPA fund (or another fund) at the next City Council meeting; or 

3)  Provide staff with other direction 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff has no recommendation but is seeking guidance as to how the Council would like 
to address the issue. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION   
Not motion required just direction to staff on how to proceed.   
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
None 



DEPARTMENT ITEMS C 
05/09/2022 

 
ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
 

 

GROUND LEASE ASSIGNMENT REQUEST – CORPORATE HANGAR 12 
 

Meeting Date:  May 9, 2022 Agenda Section: Department Items 
Department: Administration      Staff Contact:  Nikki Messenger 
www.cityofroseburg.org Contact Telephone Number:  541-492-6866 
 

 
ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY   
The current owner of Corporate Hangar 12 has requested a ground lease assignment.  
The issue for the Council is whether to approve the assignment.    
 
BACKGROUND 
 
A. Council Action History.   
On January 24, 2011, Council authorized execution of the first amendment to ground 
lease and settlement agreement on Corporate Hangar 12 at the Airport.   
 
B. Analysis.  
On March 17, 2022, staff received the attached written request from Derek Simmons on 
behalf of REIS, LLC to transfer its interest in the ground lease for Corporate Hangar 
Space 12 to Aerostate, LLC, owned by Jody Tatone and Ben Tatone.   
 
The ground lease for Hangar 12 has an effective date of December 1, 2006.  The initial 
term ends June 20, 2027.  Since there is more than five years remaining on the lease, 
the Roseburg Municipal Code requires City Council approval of the assignment after 
recommendation from the Airport Commission.  According to the lease language, the City 
has sixty (60) days to act on the assignment request.  If the City does not act in that time, 
“then the request shall be deemed granted.”   
 
Hangar 12 currently has a combination of aviation and non-aviation uses allowed under 
the “First Amendment to Ground Lease and Settlement Agreement” dated February 2011.  
The portion of Hangar 12 used for non-aeronautical purposes totals 4,894 square feet 
and is charged at a higher lease rate than the remaining 7,218 square feet.  The non-
aeronautical use is considered “interim” by the FAA and requires the City to submit a 
written request for extension of the interim non-aeronautical use every five years.  The 
FAA’s last approval for the non-aeronautical use was issued via email on April 16, 2021.   
 
The use of a portion of the hangar for non-aeronautical uses is not popular with adjacent 
corporate hangar owners.  One issue that has come up is security.  The north apron has 
two gates.  One gate provides access to the parking area and west side (street side) of 

http://www.cityofroseburg.org/


DEPARTMENT ITEMS C 
05/09/2022 

the west corporate hangar row.  The second gate provides access to the airside of those 
hangars and the north apron area.  The west gate has historically remained open during 
“business hours” so that employees working in Hangar 12 could have access during the 
workday.  The second gate remains closed 24/7 and requires a code for airport users to 
open the gate.  There was extensive conversation among the Airport Commissioners 
regarding the security issues related to the two-gate situation.  Staff has been looking at 
solutions that would allow both gates to be closed full time and operated by a card lock 
or other similar system that could provide better security than the current system.  The 
FY 2022-23 Airport Fund budget request includes funding for security upgrades. 
 
The other item that has changed since the execution of the original lease and settlement 
agreement is the zoning code.  At the time of the original lease, the area was zoned M-2 
Medium Commercial.  It has since been rezoned to Airport District.  In the Airport District, 
offices are allowed conditionally, and require a Conditional Use Permit (CUP).   
 
The Airport Commission discussed this lease assignment at length at their April 21 
meeting.  Ultimately, the Commission voted 3-2 to forward the lease assignment request 
to the Council without a recommendation.   
 
C. Financial/Resource Considerations.   
The current lease rate for the non-aviation portion of the hangar is $0.73/SF and totals 
$3,572.62 annually.  The aviation lease rate is $0.3115/SF and totals $2,248.56.  
Previously, the hangar owner had also rented additional parking spaces at $24/month per 
space. 
 
D. Timing Considerations.   
Section 20 of the lease agreement gives the City 60 days from receiving the written 
request for assignment to consent or object to the assignment (which shall not be 
unreasonably withheld).  The written request was received on March 17, which gives the 
City until May 16. 
 
COUNCIL OPTIONS 
The Council has the following options: 

1. Approve the lease assignment from REIS, LLC to Aerostate, LLC with conditions; 
or 

2. Approve the lease assignment from REIS, LLC to Aerostate, LLC without 
conditions; or 

3. Request additional information, which may require a special meeting prior to May 
16. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Council approve the lease assignment from REIS, LLC to 
Aerostate, LLC with the following conditions.  

1. The new lessee acknowledges and agrees to any future security upgrades the 
City/Airport may consider, including the west gate remaining closed during 



DEPARTMENT ITEMS C 
05/09/2022 

business hours and requiring an access code or other mechanism (key card) for 
access.  Lessee shall be responsible for maintaining privacy of any access codes. 

2. Lessee and/or any tenants shall obtain any required land use action including a 
conditional use permit if required. 

3. Lessee and/or any tenants shall agree to rent the number of parking spaces 
required for the non-aeronautical use beyond two spaces. 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION   
I move to approve the ground lease assignment for Corporate Hangar Space 12 
from REIS, LLC to Aerostate, LLC with the following conditions: 

1. The new lessee acknowledges and agrees to any future security 
upgrades the City/Airport may consider, including the west gate 
remaining closed during business hours and requiring an access code or 
other mechanism (key card) for access.  Lessee shall be responsible for 
maintaining privacy of any access codes. 

2. Lessee and/or any tenants shall obtain any required land use action 
approvals including a conditional use permit if required. 

3. Lessee and/or any tenants shall agree to rent the number of parking 
spaces required for the non-aeronautical use beyond two spaces. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Attachment #1 – Request for Consent to Assignment of Ground Lease for Corporate 
Hangar Space No. 12 
 



DEPARTMENT ITEMS C 
ATTACHMENT #1



DEPARTMENT ITEMS C 
ATTACHMENT #1



DEPARTMENT ITEMS C 
ATTACHMENT #1



DEPARTMENT ITEMS C 
ATTACHMENT #1



DEPARTMENT ITEMS C 
ATTACHMENT #1



DEPARTMENT ITEMS C 
ATTACHMENT #1



DEPARTMENT ITEMS C 
ATTACHMENT #1



DEPARTMENT ITEMS C 
ATTACHMENT #1



DEPARTMENT ITEMS C 
ATTACHMENT #1



DEPARTMENT ITEMS C 
ATTACHMENT #1



DEPARTMENT ITEMS C 
ATTACHMENT #1



DEPARTMENT ITEMS C 
ATTACHMENT #1



DEPARTMENT ITEMS C 
ATTACHMENT #1



DEPARTMENT ITEMS C 
ATTACHMENT #1



DEPARTMENT ITEMS C 
ATTACHMENT #1



DEPARTMENT ITEMS C 
ATTACHMENT #1



DEPARTMENT ITEMS C 
ATTACHMENT #1



DEPARTMENT ITEMS C 
ATTACHMENT #1



DEPARTMENT ITEMS C 
ATTACHMENT #1



DEPARTMENT ITEMS C 
ATTACHMENT #1



DEPARTMENT ITEMS C 
ATTACHMENT #1



DEPARTMENT ITEMS C 
ATTACHMENT #1



DEPARTMENT ITEMS C 
ATTACHMENT #1



INFORMATIONAL A 
05/09/2022 

 
ROSEBURG CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
 

 

CITY MANAGER ACTIVITY REPORT 
 

Meeting Date:  May 9, 2022                                         Agenda Section: Informational 
Department:  Administration        Staff Contact:  Nikki Messenger, City Manager 
www.cityofroseburg.org     Contact Telephone Number:  541-492-6866 
 

 
ISSUE STATEMENT AND SUMMARY   
At each meeting, the City Manager provides the City Council with a report on the activities 
of the City, along with an update on operational/personnel related issues which may be 
of interest to the Council.  These reports shall be strictly informational and will not require 
any action on the Council’s part.  The reports are intended to provide a mechanism to 
solicit feedback and enhance communication between the Council, City Manager and City 
Staff.  For your May 9, 2022, meeting, the following items are included:   
 

 Department Head Meeting Agendas  

 Tentative Future Council Agenda Items  

 City Manager Friday Messages 
 

http://www.cityofroseburg.org/













	Agenda page
	Special Meeting/Mayors Report C - City Council Interview
	Special Meeting - Interview Questions
	Special Meeting - Kylee Rummel Application
	04A - EMS Week Proclamation
	04B - National Public Works Week Proclamation
	04D - Charter Committee Appointment
	04D1 - Jeffrey Weller Applicant
	04D2 - Betsy Cunningham Applicant
	04D3 - Ashley Hicks Applicant
	07A - April 25, 2022 Meeting Minutes
	07B - Oregon Dept. of Aviaion Pavement Management Program Agreement Authorization
	08A - Annual Fee Adjustment Discussion
	08B - Providing Interim Cash Flow Financing for Off Street Parking Fund
	08C - Ground Lease Assignment Request - Corporate Hangar 12
	08C1 - Attachment from Simmon Law for Corporate Hangar 12
	Informational A - City Manager Activity Report



